

IBM Cúram Social Program Management

Cúram Multidisciplinary Team Portal Guide

Version 6.0.4

Note Before using this information and the product it supports, read the information in Notices at the back of this guide.
This edition applies to version 6.0.4 of IBM Cúram Social Program Management
and all subsequent releases and modifications unless otherwise indicated in new editions. Licensed Materials - Property of IBM
Copyright IBM Corporation 2012. All rights reserved.
US Government Users Restricted Rights - Use, duplication or disclosure restricted by GSA ADP Schedule Contract with IBM Corp.
© Copyright 2008,2011 Cúram Software Limited

Table of Contents

Chapter 1 Your Home Page and Profile	1
1.1 Your Home Page	
1.2 Your Profile	
	_
Chapter 2 Your Cases and Clients	3
2.1 Your Cases	
2.1.1 Common Collaborative Case Information	
2.1.2 Collaborative Outcome Plan Case Information	
2.1.3 Collaborative Investigation Case Information	
2.1.4 Collaborative Social Enterprise Folder Case Information	5
2.2 Your Clients	6
	_
Chapter 3 Reporting Incidents	
3.1 Reporting an Incident for an Affected Client	
3.2 Viewing Incidents for Your Clients	7
Chapter 4 Your Multidisciplinary Teams	Q
4.1 Viewing the Members of Your Multidisciplinary Teams	
4.2 Contacting Multidisciplinary Team Members	
4.2 Contacting Multidisciplinary Team Members	o
Chapter 5 Your Discussion Participation	9
5.1 Viewing Your Discussions	9
5.2 Creating New Discussions and Adding Discussion Comments	
Chapter 6 Your Calendar	
6.1 Viewing Scheduled Meetings in Your Calendar	11
6.2 Scheduling Meetings	11
6.3 Recording Meeting Minutes Wizard	
Chapter 7 Your Tasks	
7.1 Viewing Work Assigned to You	
7.2 Managing Your Work	
Notices	15

Your Home Page and Profile

1.1 Your Home Page

The multidisciplinary team portal provides you with tools to manage your clients and cases and helps you coordinate with your co-team members. Menu options link to the following:

- The complete list of cases for which you are a multidisciplinary team member
- All clients for these cases
- Your calendar which includes scheduled meetings
- Any work assigned to you via tasks
- Your multidisciplinary teams, their team members, and contact information
- Your online profile

A quick link is also provided allowing you to report an incident.

Summary information is also displayed on the portal home page for scheduled meetings and tasks, recently posted meeting minutes and reported incidents, and any discussions you are currently watching.

1.2 Your Profile

Your profile includes contact information and a summary of your multidisciplinary teams. A link is provided to update the contact details in your profile including your name, role within the multidisciplinary team, phone number(s), mailing address, and email address. These updates are automatically published across the organization so that agency workers and multidisciplinary team members can contact you using the most up-to-date in-

formation. Links are also provided to view more information about your multidisciplinary teams and to view contact details for the lead members.



Note

Online information including your username, password, and sensitivity security level must be maintained by a system administrator. You will need to contact the organization responsible for maintaining the system in order to maintain these aspects of your online profile.

Your Cases and Clients

2.1 Your Cases

The My Cases tab allows you to access the complete list of your cases in the multidisciplinary team portal. These are the collaborative social enterprise folders, collaborative outcome plans and collaborative investigation cases for which you are a multidisciplinary team member.

To assist you in managing your cases, each case which has one or more recent transactions since you logged into the portal is highlighted. If for example a new client was added to an outcome plan case since your last login the case will be marked as updated.

The case home page displayed depends on the type of case i.e. whether it relates to an outcome plan, investigation or social enterprise folder. The case representing a social enterprise folder displays a list of clients and cases within the social enterprise folder. These are also viewable via the Clients and Cases links. The case representing an outcome plan displays a list of clients and their objectives. The case representing an investigation shows a list of clients along with the number of open and decided allegations. The sections below describe what is maintained for each type of case.

2.1.1 Common Collaborative Case Information

The following section describes at a high level the information that is maintained for each type of case i.e. discussions, meetings, meeting minutes, attachments and a multidisciplinary team.

Discussions

Multidisciplinary team members can use discussion boards to share advice and important information. These discussion boards can be configured to email multidisciplinary team members when discussions are posted and comments added making it as easy as possible for team members to be informed and have the opportunity to participate in a discussion. For more information on posting discussions, see Chapter 5, *Your Discussion Participation*.

Scheduling Meetings and Recording Meeting Minutes

To address the needs of children and their families, meetings can be scheduled from the calendar. PIM integration allows meeting invites to be accepted in their personal calendars, for example in Microsoft® Outlook, making it easier to coordinate meetings. For more information on scheduling meetings in your calendar, see Chapter 6, *Your Calendar*.

The record meeting minutes wizard provides functionality for recording general meeting details, adding meeting notes, listing meeting decisions, marking attendees, outlining actions, attaching files, and associating the minutes with case. These meeting minutes can be automatically issued to persons invited to the meeting. For more information on meeting minutes, see Section 6.3, *Recording Meeting Minutes Wizard*.

Multidisciplinary Team

Each collaborative outcome plan, social enterprise folder and investigation has a multidisciplinary team of which you are a member (hence why they are accessible to you). Fundamental to the success of social enterprise collaboration is the ability of multidisciplinary teams to work together to effectively manage the needs of clients and their families. There are two types of multidisciplinary teams in Cúram: predefined multidisciplinary teams consisting of persons who continue to work together to help multiple families and individual multidisciplinary teams whose goal is to assist one family in particular.

For both types of multidisciplinary teams, you can view the list of current members and the list of previous members. This allows MDT leaders to see who has worked on the case over time and to contact previous team members when necessary. For example, an MDT leader might wish to find out more about a previous discussion or may require advice on how to work with a client. For individual multidisciplinary teams, you can add new team members and change the lead member. The system will automatically update the team members and lead member listed in the administration component.

Predefined teams, however, must be redefined by an administrator. This is to ensure consistency across all collaborative cases relying on the predefined team. In effect, these predefined teams are not meant to be redefined, since their purpose is to offer consistent representation for clients in similar circumstances. For example, the multidisciplinary team working on child welfare cases should treat each family in the same fashion in order to ensure the protection of all children. Having a team familiar with each other and the work is beneficial to addressing the needs of children and their families.

For more information on your multidisciplinary teams, see Section 4.1, *Viewing the Members of Your Multidisciplinary Teams*.

Recording Notes

Notes can be recorded and a history can be maintained for each note. The note history includes the name of the person who last updated the note, the date and time the updates were added, and the actual changes made to the note.

Attaching Relevant Files

Supplemental files can be attached to the collaborative cases and accessed by other system users who have the appropriate security privileges. Within collaborative cases, it is also possible to attach supplemental files to meeting minutes, discussion comments, and incidents.

2.1.2 Collaborative Outcome Plan Case Information

The following section describes at a high level the information maintained for a collaborative outcome plan case in addition to the information outlined in Section 2.1.1, *Common Collaborative Case Information*.

Activities

An activity is a service, referral or action that has been scheduled for a client as part of an outcome plan. Activity information will provide you with a more complete picture of what a client is currently involved in and will assist you in identifying other activities that may assist the client.

Objectives

Objectives are small steps that a client is trying to achieve as part of an outcome plan, for example, remain clean and sober. Objective information will give you a better idea of the objectives and ultimate goal the client is trying to achieve.

2.1.3 Collaborative Investigation Case Information

The number of open and decided allegations are displayed for a collaborative investigation case. This will help you gauge the seriousness of the investigation.

2.1.4 Collaborative Social Enterprise Folder Case Information

The following section describes at a high level the information maintained for a collaborative social enterprise folder case in addition to the information outlined in Section 2.1.1, *Common Collaborative Case Information*.

Incidents

Incident reporting is necessary to facilitate prevention, ensuring that potential indicators concerning a family's history are tracked in order to avoid more serious situations. Failure to report an incident, for example of child abuse, could result in a second incident of child abuse and delay the family intervention and referral of the child to child services. Multidisciplinary team members can be automatically notified via email when incidents effecting their clients are reported, updated, or closed. For more information on reporting incidents for your clients, see Chapter 3, *Reporting Incidents*.

Cases

Collaborative social enterprise folders are used to group clients and their associated cases together. This provides a more holistic view of a clients interactions with the agency.

2.2 Your Clients

You can access the complete list of your clients in the multidisciplinary team portal. This list is the combined list of all the clients with all collaborative cases for which you are an MDT member. You can view the contact details for each client. A link is also provided to email the client at his or her current email address, if it exists.

Reporting Incidents

3.1 Reporting an Incident for an Affected Client

Incidents are events that have (or could have) a direct negative effect on the health and safety of a client, for example, a report of child neglect or abuse or an accident in a work place. When reporting an incident, the following information can be provided:

- A detailed description of the incident and the date and time the incident occurred
- Names of affected clients
- Name of the person reporting the incident
- Name and contact details of any persons associated with the incident along with their role, for example, witness, guardian, parent
- Any supporting documentation, for example, evidence verifying the circumstances of the incident; files can be attached to an incident thus providing evidence and supporting documentation for the incident

3.2 Viewing Incidents for Your Clients

Reported incidents are also automatically displayed in all of the affected clients' social enterprise folders.

You can edit incident details, add new participants, change the incident reporter, and add an additional affected client. You can also attach a file to the incident or delete the incident all together.

Your Multidisciplinary Teams

4.1 Viewing the Members of Your Multidisciplinary Teams

The Teams tab in the Cúram Multidisciplinary Team Portal displays your multidisciplinary teams. You can expand each team to view its multidisciplinary team members.

4.2 Contacting Multidisciplinary Team Members

Several options are provided to contact multidisciplinary team members from your list of teams. You can choose to send an email to the entire team or else email an individual team member. You can also schedule a meeting and invite all team members to attend. Alternatively, a phone number is provided for each multidisciplinary team member.

Your Discussion Participation

5.1 Viewing Your Discussions

Discussion boards are communication tools that allow comments and questions relating to a particular subject be posted online. Members of the discussion board can actively engage in discussions by responding with their own remarks over time. The purpose of these discussions is to promote coordination and teamwork between multidisciplinary team members and agency workers enabling them to share advice and important information that may impact the resolution of the case.

The main players of a discussion board are the discussion moderator and the discussion watchers. The role of the discussion moderator is to ensure that all discussions within all collaborative outcome plans, investigations and social enterprise folders are handled appropriately and thus has the ability to manage all aspects of a discussion. By default, the discussion moderator is the owner of the collaborative outcome plan, social enterprise folder or investigation. Since discussions can contain highly sensitive and important information, the discussion moderator has the sole responsibility of closing a discussion.

The role of discussion watchers is to actively engage in the discussion by viewing and contributing discussion comments. Discussion watchers can view the discussion and are automatically notified via email when comments are added. By default, you will be added to the list of discussion watchers when you are a multidisciplinary team member, the discussion moderator, or the person who created the discussion. As an external user, you can choose to stop watching a discussion, as well as, choose to start watching it again.

5.2 Creating New Discussions and Adding Discussion Comments

When creating a new discussion, you must also enter the discussion title and the first discussion comment. The discussion sensitivity level is automatically set to the lowest level, 1. You can raise the sensitivity level to a level equal to or less than your own sensitivity level. Only users with a sensitivity level equal to or higher than will be allowed to participate in the discussion. Optionally, a file can be attached to the discussion.

Your Calendar

6.1 Viewing Scheduled Meetings in Your Calendar

Your calendar displays all meetings that you have been invited to within your multidisciplinary team. For each meeting invite, a link is provided to view meeting details. Where meeting minutes have already been recorded, you can view these minutes. You can also record meeting minutes, if not done so already. For meetings scheduled by you, maintenance options are provided to invite or remove meeting attendees and to cancel the meeting.

6.2 Scheduling Meetings

You can schedule a team meeting and invite the team to attend. When you invite a team, the system automatically contacts all of the team members whose contact details are available. Personal information manager (PIM) integration with Cúram meetings enables meeting requests to appear in your calendar and in your external email account, for example, Microsoft® Outlook.

Any person invited to a meeting who has an email address can receive a meeting invite and choose to accept or decline using his or her PIM calendar without having to log into Cúram. The following table describes the PIM integration for each possible meeting response:

	Code	Case Status
Accept		Meeting invites can be accepted resulting in a reminder being added to the Cúram calendar and to the meeting attendee's PIM calendar, for example, a Microsoft Outlook calendar. Within the collaborative case, the meeting attendee is marked as 'Ac-

Code	Case Status
	cepted', thus informing interested parties.
Decline	When meeting invites are declined, the meeting still appears in the invitee's Cúram calendar but will not appear in the PIM calendar. Within the collaborative case, the meeting attendee is marked as 'Declined'.
Mark as Tentative	Meeting invites can be marked as tentative. The meeting will appear in the Cúram calendar and in the PIM calendar of the meeting attendee and the status of the meeting is marked as tentative.

Table 6.1 Meeting Response Actions

6.3 Recording Meeting Minutes Wizard

Using the record meeting minutes wizard, you can capture the details of a meeting and issue meeting minutes to attendees and other interested parties. The record meeting minutes wizard also supports work-in-progress minutes, allowing pieces of information to be recorded all at once or over a period of time. The following meeting information can be captured:

Meeting Details

This includes the meeting subject, location, start and end date/time, as well as the name of the person who organized the meeting and the meeting agenda. Any information entered as part of scheduling the meeting will pre-populate the meeting details.

Meeting Notes and Decisions

Meeting notes and decisions can be recorded; these are separate steps in the meeting wizard.

Meeting Attendance

Meeting invitees can be added to the meeting attendees list. Additional invitees can be added, along with their email addresses, to allow for the minutes to be issued to them.

Meeting Actions

Any meeting actions decided upon can be added to the meeting minutes along with the person responsible for the action and the due date by which it is to be complete. A task is created in the background to track progress and is viewable from an internal user inbox and an external user tasks list.

Meeting Files

Files can be attached to meeting minutes. File attachments are accessible by viewing meeting minutes.

Meeting Cases

One or more collaborative cases can be associated with the meeting.

Meeting Summary

This is a summary of the meeting minutes information recorded thus far

Once the meeting minutes are recorded, you can issue them to any person invited to the meeting. By default, meeting minutes are issued via email with the minutes in an attached PDF document, thus email addresses are required. An informational is displayed when minutes are issued and one or more email addresses are missing or invalid.

Your Tasks

7.1 Viewing Work Assigned to You

Your multidisciplinary team portal includes an inbox which lists the tasks assigned to you. Each task provides information about an action that you are responsible for completing. Tasks can be assigned to you as part of recording meeting minutes for a scheduled meeting. Agencies can also assign tasks to you as part of their business processing. For example, the agency may request input from you as part of evaluating a client's needs. This input can be tracked in an assigned task.

7.2 Managing Your Work

As part of managing your work you can add comments regarding a task. You can also close the task once you have completed the work or else if the task is no longer relevant. Since tasks can be assigned to you in related to a scheduled meeting, a link is provided to view the associated meeting minutes.

Each task has a history which displays all events that have occurred during the life cycle of a particular task. For each event, the name of the person who performed the action and the date and time of that action are recorded.

Notices

This information was developed for products and services offered in the U.S.A. IBM may not offer the products, services, or features discussed in this document in other countries. Consult your local IBM representative for information on the products and services currently available in your area. Any reference to an IBM product, program, or service is not intended to state or imply that only that IBM product, program, or service may be used. Any functionally equivalent product, program, or service that does not infringe any IBM intellectual property right may be used instead. However, it is the user's responsibility to evaluate and verify the operation of any non-IBM product, program, or service. IBM may have patents or pending patent applications covering subject matter described in this document. The furnishing of this document does not grant you any license to these patents. You can send license inquiries, in writing, to:

IBM Director of Licensing

IBM Corporation

North Castle Drive

Armonk, NY 10504-1785

U.S.A.

For license inquiries regarding double-byte (DBCS) information, contact the IBM Intellectual Property Department in your country or send inquiries, in writing, to:

Intellectual Property Licensing

Legal and Intellectual Property Law.

IBM Japan Ltd.

1623-14, Shimotsuruma, Yamato-shi

Kanagawa 242-8502 Japan

The following paragraph does not apply to the United Kingdom or any other country where such provisions are inconsistent with local law: INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINES CORPORATION PROVIDES THIS PUBLICATION "AS IS" WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF NON-INFRINGEMENT, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. Some states do not allow disclaimer of express or implied warranties in certain transactions, therefore, this statement may not apply to you.

This information could include technical inaccuracies or typograph-

ical errors. Changes are periodically made to the information herein; these changes will be incorporated in new editions of the publication. IBM may make improvements and/or changes in the product(s) and/or the program(s) described in this publication at any time without notice.

Any references in this information to non-IBM Web sites are provided for convenience only and do not in any manner serve as an endorsement of those Web sites. The materials at those Web sites are not part of the materials for this IBM product and use of those Web sites is at your own risk.

IBM may use or distribute any of the information you supply in any way it believes appropriate without incurring any obligation to you. Licensees of this program who wish to have information about it for the purpose of enabling: (i) the exchange of information between independently created programs and other programs (including this one) and (ii) the mutual use of the information which has been exchanged, should contact:

IBM Corporation

Dept F6, Bldg 1

294 Route 100

Somers NY 10589-3216

U.S.A.

Such information may be available, subject to appropriate terms and conditions, including in some cases, payment of a fee.

The licensed program described in this document and all licensed material available for it are provided by IBM under terms of the IBM Customer Agreement, IBM International Program License Agreement or any equivalent agreement between us.

Any performance data contained herein was determined in a controlled environment. Therefore, the results obtained in other operating environments may vary significantly. Some measurements may have been made on development-level systems and there is no guarantee that these measurements will be the same on generally available systems. Furthermore, some measurements may have been estimated through extrapolation. Actual results may vary. Users of this document should verify the applicable data for their specific environment.

Information concerning non-IBM products was obtained from the suppliers of those products, their published announcements or other publicly available sources.

IBM has not tested those products and cannot confirm the accuracy of performance, compatibility or any other claims related to non-IBM products. Questions on the capabilities of non-IBM products should be addressed to the suppliers of those products.

All statements regarding IBM's future direction or intent are subject to change or withdrawal without notice, and represent goals and objectives only

All IBM prices shown are IBM's suggested retail prices, are current and are subject to change without notice. Dealer prices may vary.

This information is for planning purposes only. The information herein is subject to change before the products described become available.

This information contains examples of data and reports used in daily business operations. To illustrate them as completely as possible, the examples include the names of individuals, companies, brands, and products. All of these names are fictitious and any similarity to the names and addresses used by an actual business enterprise is entirely coincidental.

COPYRIGHT LICENSE:

This information contains sample application programs in source language, which illustrate programming techniques on various operating platforms. You may copy, modify, and distribute these sample programs in any form without payment to IBM, for the purposes of developing, using, marketing or distributing application programs conforming to the application programming interface for the operating platform for which the sample programs are written. These examples have not been thoroughly tested under all conditions. IBM, therefore, cannot guarantee or imply reliability, serviceability, or function of these programs. The sample programs are provided "AS IS", without warranty of any kind. IBM shall not be liable for any damages arising out of your use of the sample programs.

Each copy or any portion of these sample programs or any derivative work, must include a copyright notice as follows:

- © your company name) (year). Portions of this code are derived from IBM Corp. Sample Programs.
- © Copyright IBM Corp. _enter the year or years_. All rights reserved.

If you are viewing this information softcopy, the photographs and color illustrations may not appear.

Trademarks

IBM, the IBM logo, and ibm.com are trademarks or registered trade-

marks of International Business Machines Corp., registered in many jurisdictions worldwide. Other product and service names might be trademarks of IBM or other companies. A current list of IBM trademarks is available on the Web at "Copyright and trademark information" at http://www.ibm.com/legal/us/en/copytrade.shtml.

Adobe, the Adobe logo, and Portable Document Format (PDF), are either registered trademarks or trademarks of Adobe Systems Incorporated in the United States, other countries, or both.

Microsoft and Outlook are trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States, other countries, or both.

Other names may be trademarks of their respective owners. Other company, product, and service names may be trademarks or service marks of others.